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Guesiignod § eFvereeinzuini 0z mUntmmuaummmoasjnumu?maucasmuajmu
nowagItdude uidegducoufioduanGldinoy wax Guaojsin. yuaesidudsiidndy
wLudimuyuaduiegrduiingyniluaunusudues) lwawpunueniudy. nruawtdndo

2

vzlovisdugelisnounuanolug3InuduE g uao U uIntuNIUSIREaUEUT,  0UT IR

v

2 2

no1wgytwduBe Widnorwminge. vxlouvwdudsbazufiustlovonuldifd, nyofivdn
sudweiiv way Sunetunuszyloduds wiununougunudssduds wax oinudivdy, §
B&wmndiduputunudesduide, war aluztovonulsududs. aorwgydnulsudude
ccbuﬁﬂowg'ljjth"‘fméﬁ@néﬂﬁuma:ﬁmesm:mmu; geiiy, GOSmmw %jsfwaejaawg'ljﬂumweu
Sucdatiar o).

n0WSIIGWOEYIN

021UFIINWOLYIN CUUNDIUKIIZSINWIURLTNNSUPNNILE UMD NUSe91u0uiiuaIn, §
somnendsunzgn, Jg998jUsnsudin §: ao1wg3gInnIuCandjugsunitidzenn «ay
21U INSNNeNL.

() 0TI FINNVERNYTUES I T2

aowwgIRnNUCandsuuaUsmn ey mudeutmogeidnnicandjuiinefiud
Bonicanduduandzannductas tavs. nzunwdifiEnawsluus lununougud i
Foaowdymeandonuandsy.  aowdyticioannicandugsfumnaidzan
couBnwdony, novguidinyy Waenaefiuniwdiduw wax Snwmloaztivnow
éljjmaUS.U%U\iﬁ (e Gu20iu.



3. velowenudSnmwaorudyitmniusy ()
3.2 21ROy (O)

(i) aowgy)9InSacinsnide

'
o o

021U839INS0mnendumiect]) n01US3) INaIUiiuLoY 293t hnenugns 8
WuBuuen mudjucdigeiasiudomoendiy way awdfunsfivdsudy way WS
nowggIRINSamaendufind3muioniy InonwaovguiiceinWisn tnufntaby
nuneutnuRnMUAIfiy 2sdamaenduunzmn way GuRvesyfuiidu. andam
nsmcz”Jauﬁnnn’lutﬁumauasjénmmsntﬁa’fnaﬁnﬁnmuz"’nﬁumjuﬁumuu;nﬁjasjma

a

Su.
3.3 WAIIWILWIWNS)

n0WFINWRTWIOSINFoLeTiuno U LNt UNUENIRzwwngI2ejgudy  Thujdniivwiaz
gndy «ar Junzninudy ecfinidnoaigne. Godnwesinzuniwinniuedningonny
NIUESUIMO29INLURKRT (AT 98N (AT §9IM1A1WNITNTD.  YnAwNEisutmogeyuld)

gu taz Gudmnamandr covindnniwgzwiwas e Wl TadBududimosrundodulduggba

fiuwRzeniiy «az unznigniudgy (erfinlnoaigiag.

4. (udn «ar vsadieiivneuiniunig

GuanTud (Dnsziivivd 4.1)
ganjuean Tunzunwniy venwisdudininidntagy
79 (Y (JUINFIS9) (Dnsziuwi 4.2)

Qo8 Tufudn war Awmunjudiniudn (Soesdive e)
(Jueandnilintauzern 1Ry (JUUINFIS9INUAZUIUNIY
fiunzunwny (Sossiiviwi 4.3)

4.1 (JUAnTuld

(unTud - senuiguniv

(U0 Tud - senudunindzann
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2018

iy
11.935.233.588
41.698.386.303

53.633.619.891

429.260.503.934

482,894.123.825

2018
bild]
5.177.501.000

6.757.732.588

11.935.233.588

2017
bi1d]
14.814.425.389

83.243.237.196

98.057.662.585

417.841.467.206

515.899.129.791

2017
bid]
7.605.735.500

7.208.689.889

14.814.425.389



4. Gudn war vsnueiivmzunin ()
4.2  wenufiegnzuriniunty uenwilievINduummuazugunay

2018 2017
fiu fiu
41,698.386.303

(Jueainniusingsifigniu 83.243.237.196

4.3 GJueantavzeo, (Juadndmnio caz Guunmuasujumuiivnznwen) U 210

2018 2017
i) bitd
s9ImLzUIuNIU (i)
GJuelandicgin (i)
ueaindmibotavzeo (i)

2.755.503.934 3.186.467.206

5.000.000 5.000.000

426.500.000.000 414.650.000.000

429.260.503.934 417.841.467.206

@) c‘iutJmc@‘nﬁm‘l‘%nm‘E:’J:ﬁumzmmumjmuawjumu. vonfudniidntad ugznuduivdo
A 5% war gxnudulna war uuancoufinta 10% esjvsnduunfisinigndtuanin
nrnEy: Guumndsdn, dinnsegawdy car dindnbolud. Suuinmuazusuniul
wlud Doendie.

©

a

(ii) nemndiEngitinfiuGudiniivnsuniy why gUd a%0. SwouGuinifiduiinustiuty
mudduueeINzLInIy. MURnzuuILTUENA o1/ F35ud 28 Lnsu 2010
NTVINIWYAZTN €L F121013Uzn0 zﬁﬁéﬂﬁnj’mmosu, Dadutiordse) 25% 295U
Sonzusy cay Gudsiudndid. GuumicoudiéEunende.

(iii) FudaindnifntaurerodivEng  tdfvngun g 2UU 210 I8amnenidy 4,50% AU.
5, (Jueainfivnzuinwsy
(uaniunzunIusu thSns Uil

n) TENSNLULEITUNICTY

vsnifisfiunzuinmwiuzmnn
NZUINIU WIWIN UzmSyU - 2127 UrnsuaIo3yiv
NZUINIW NUEINIIULNNID LzoIBu

vendieriunzuinmlutidsen

NTLINW 91 (88 U — Yzinn
NEUIIW 91 (58 0 — JLinn UuAgy
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2018
nu

5.277.400.000
2.699.410.571

2017
bild]

9.319.700.000

7.976.810.571

135.451.276
1.170.566.270
1.306.017.546

9.282.828.117

9.319.700.000

541.927.263
886.232.606
1.428.159.869

10.747.859.869



5. GJueanfiunzuniusy (O)

2) Sensenugenuiy

fenuuivnzwmuws udeann
fu

Toa

U0

enuguivnzweundsann

0Q1
I
6. (JUAn car MununJucgudo

(UA0 wr vsnisyfiunzuInIuNg
(Dnoztiviuii 4)
(Jueainfunzunwsy (Dngztiuil 5)

7. GRAGOL waz Fuaogoiinldignin

GRAAILU way Guaoplinldignén
(Juus

o a

n. StaemugLnuIy
nu
(3]
U0
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GUUAAIL car GuaogoinldignéntdSnizdaul:

2018
Au

1.027.224.904
1.543.806.315
5.405.779.352
7.976.810.571

1.170.566.270
135.451.276
1.306.017.546

9.282.828.117

2018
bild]

53.633.619.891
9.282.828.117
62.916.448.008

2018
nu

477.123.940.058

(15.381.091.528)

461.742.848.530

2018

fu
399.723.573.466
63.519.964.079
13.880.402.153

477.123.940.058

2017
fiu

1.658.600.000
7.661.100.000
9.319.700.000

886.232.606
541.927.263
1.428.159.869

10.747.859.869

2017
Ay

98.057.662.585
10.747.859.869
108.805.522.454

2017
bi1d]

432.594.256.690

(9.351.039.478)

423.243.217.212

2017

fiu
350.462.650.574
67.960.029.460
14.171.576.656

432.594.256.690




7.
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SGHOL wax Guasgiinldignés (&)

a.

a.

A

Scezmudzcuac o

GuAd U
GuAd L

Stozmuniuindzawnlng mzwinw g YU 210

Guiiduidisutmodnned

Jnned
81127¢

GuiduioSnmuciieutno

AMDILINNET I
TGS
ouCE)

TNZNUS IS 0EY

NSNS IR ST

29N
220UINIUNEY
220UINIVAT

25000INWEVT] (A T

22oNINIWIINI
2=oNINZ &M
2zoInnNEnI
oISy

sutmoUnn=d
Jnmudisutno

2018
ny

426.213.067.229
50.910.872.829

477.123.940.058

2018
nu

414.610.466.979
11.602.600.250

11.121.701.118
26.536.053.034
13.253.118.677

2017

fu
419.195.825.761
13.398.430.929

432.594.256.690

2017
nu

385.168.556.656
34.027.269.105

1.163.656.730
12.234.774.199
[0]

477.123.940.058

2018
Au
477.123.940.058

2018

fiu
25.871.339.664
50.203.391.054
119.258.792.733
16.248.350.479
165.806.258.552
1.078.230.627
2.878.893.449
95.778.683.500

477.123.940.058

432.594.256.690

2017
Au
432.594.256.690

2017

fiu
25.030.778.255
52.195.301.311
98.616.557.912
18.112.404.614
144.979.025.775
1.086.721.552
2.975.384.671
89.598.082.600

432.594.256.690



SRGHDL wax Guasgiinldignés (&)

Teneenuy LS

wdgwrtudzinn
wdrelnguzenn

Scenzmmuao/anty

nouUsnw

2018

fu
431.451.656.219
45.672.283.839

477.123.940.058

2018
bild]
477.123.940.058

477.123.940.058

2017

fu
400.089.947.254
32.504.309.436

432.594.256.690

2017
bild]
432.594.256.690

432.594.256.690

nmucdisutno eoyfucssmducplifdu Siatui:

snseyfunsiio
yoniefing
Ssofursiud
AuaruniudiseySucsiug
gouf13INSnnanyJu

TuSuR 31 Huon

MseJuUISILIWL
vonfiobiud
Smsoyfursiul
AuaruniusiseySucsiug
FrR100RY
gouf1NSnnandju

TuSuH 31 diuon

2018
nu

D

2.995.919.951
18.878.843.663
(19.432.185.716)
11.528.642

2.454.106.540

2018
nu

6.355.119.527
19.169.288.920
(12.717.176.429)

119.752.970

12.926.984.988

2017
nu

1.929.298.416
11.636.788.403
(10.584.287.424)
14.120.556

2.995.919.951

2017
nu

2.340.114.144
12.161.891.962
(7.533.035.485)
(657.588.577)
43.737.483

6.355.119.527
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SRGHDL wax Guasgiinldignés (&)
2. Jensmuaowanty (O

mudndzawnTudud 31 Kol 2018 G9OtUL:

Suiidutideutnodned
Jnned

(81727
Suiduiidcdeutmo
BNV
wafa

olicsi

2018
fiu

2.105.922.029
348.184.5M

1.194.826.345
6.518.797.852

5.213.360.791

15.381.091.528

2017
nu

1.974.995.246
1.020.924.705

232.731.345
6.122.388.182

9.351.039.478
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s

Suduiisnitiofiu

Qo

2101 (e

nwduyy
b3l

Gudiu:
TS 1 Jgnewu 2018 13.154.788.577
Wusutud 271.665.671

TuSuti 31 Hiuor 2018 13.426.454.248

Juaedijuardu:
TSui 1 Jynsu 2018 1.490.341.355
adudiutud 654.172.414

TuSuR 31 Huor 2018
Juaenuduggan twdud
31 iUd 2018

2.144.513.769

11.281.940.479

nutiisuimonjofivuenifiess) Suduainiibody el Sud 31 fiuol 2018 Diigb:

teflSdiegnu
fiv

599.112.220
30.360.067

629.472.287

240.876.400
118.637.837

359.514.237

269,958.050

neLuliod
fiu

8.588.777.553
665.358.908

9.254.136.461

5.468.837.468
1.795.805.376

7.264.642.844

1.989.493.617

1.113.698.519
20.621.868

1.134.320.387

LI
Au

1.831.618.592
209.033.200

2.040.651.792

25.287.995.461
1.197.039.714

26.485.035.175

497.091.658 923.355.685
220.223.636 406.541.892
717.315.294 1.329.897.577
417.005.093 710.754.215

8.620.502.566
3.195.381.155

11.815.883.721

14.669.151.454
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v
s Qan

gugudgndfiodu ()

muisy tmonjofivusniege) Suduaign

Audiu:
TSui 1 Jyney 2017

usulud

TS 31 Hiuor 2017
Juandediyuacdu:

TS 1 Jgney 2017
endiuiizuiud

TS 31 Hiuor 2017
YusnuduggoR ludui
31 §ivo 2017

Qo

DBo8w thwd SuR 31 Hlwol 2017 Jigl:

2101 (e

nuduyy (Hefgtiomu

baid] baid]
10.157.393.824 388.326.375
2.997.394.753 210.785.845
13.154.788.577 599.112.220
982.471.655 158.286.872
507.869.700 82.589.528
1.490.341.355 240.876.400
11.664.447.222 358.235.820

nauliod
fiu

8.103.368.274

485.409.279

8.588.777.553

3.802.382.419
1.666.455.049

5.468.837.468

3.119.940.085

841.744.962

271.953.557

1.113.698.519

323.824.168
173.267.490

497.091.658

616.606.861

LI
Au

1.508.859.392

322.759.200

1.831.618.592

621.583.813
301.771.872

923.355.685

908.262.907

2)
» B

20.999.692.827

4.288.302.634

25,287.995.461

5.888.548.927
2.731.953.639

8.620.502.566

16.667.492.895
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nuEisy tmonjofivusnieeeIZududiyg uifofu DHIu:
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Audiu:
TSt 1 Igneu
cdiusulud

TuSud 31 divon
mtésugumujuuﬁ:juazﬁu:
TSt 1 Jgneu
endiudiyulud

TuSud 31 divon

yuanecnudug safituSuti 31 fivos

0118102090101 (i)
nancduiingSu (i)
117 (iii)

2018

fiu
7.415.250.205
119.352.921

7.534.603.126

4.835.611.067
1.441.121.082
6.276.732.149

1.257.870.977

2018

<«
ny
2.826.877.519
14.792.059.281
521.897.913

18.140.834.713

2017

bitd)
6.840.055.752
575.194.453

7.415.250.205

3.392.702.439
1.442.908.628
4.835.611.067

2.579.639.138

2017

<«
ny
4.138.360.565
1.774.509.037
509.806.561

16.422.676.163

() aiZ9ua03001 UsnaulniugaazJuaojpitdiduniudsivtwauzneueidninsin, (Sou «ar  an

(3199NIU €Ay AASWUNSRUE DTNz UInWEn) SUU 219, €ar A1UMLA29011812).

(i) oendiv@ngSudineud nenudySurnuldnduangané cazuuinfivnzundus lwilaou

PR D1

DoiéngSuandu tougduGuldfd udumda.

v

(i) ntdHoSnwesnzuInwasut) Jucdn, Jufudin caz nududdu.

GJueanangnén
(UL INPNYNISnILLAT IOt

n Storzmudziungsjuelan

LINNLegIWIY
tandzdn
eandnado

2018

fiv
7.135.485.744
11.400.581.449
21.219.876.915

39.755.944.108

2017

fiu
9.835.135.464
15.490.024.070
14.299.445.491

39.624.605.025



1. Suenamgnén (&)

2 SramuUziuneeIRLnuiu
nu
0an
U0

) Starzmutavzcoarnio

wiwly 3 (Gsw

4 1 6 ((9U

7 01 12 (9
QIENd 12 ((ioy

3 Srzmudziwngsignéi

Souyniiu
U HU-9ouYnéiy

) Srozmudziungeinougiiiv
weingw
INEN
12. GGueanamnzuinsy
n Storzmudziungsjuelan

LINNegIUIY
eandnado

o9 22

2018

fu
16.747.452.741
19.953.528.602
3.054.962.765

39.755.944.108

2018

fiu
26.175.136.714
964.328.616
9.238.772.485
3.377.706.293

39.755.944.108

2018

fiu
25.232.061.649
14.523.882.459

39.755.944.108

2018

(xY
ny
4.622.583.167
35.133.360.941

39.755.944.108

2018

fiv

819.125
148.000.000.000
148.000.819.125

2017

Ay
15.223.148.716
18.949.328.193
5.452.128.116

39.624.605.025

2017

fu
28.970.376.260
1.093.056.470
7.140.100.785
2.421.071.510

39.624.605.025

2017

fu
27.237.060.545

12.387.544.480

39.624.605.025

2017

<«
ny
5.385.898.722
34.238.706.303

39.624.605.025

2017

fiu

899.125
145.200.000.000

145.200.899.125



12. GJueamamneunusy ()

2 SramuUziuneeIRLnuiu
nu
3] Stazmutauzoawinio

w3 (Bou
4 016 (A9
7 0112 (G9u

13.  wouuiiSunndIdFncl

(uelandnada (i)

2

MideIdarnanddsa (i)

o

2018
fiu
148.000.819.125

148.000.819.125

2018
bild]
32.000.819.125

30.000.000.000
86.000.000.000

148.000.819.125

2018

fu
435.883.000.000
27.463.709.610

463.346.709.610

2017
biid]
145.200.899.125

145.200.899.125

2017
biid]
24.000.899.125

18.000.000.000
103.200.000.000

145.,200.899.125

2017

fu
446.992.700.000
26.700.649.917

473.693.349.917

6] GuedainOnibo, Bdugenuiy W01Renzdn, E38nmnsndiuein 1,80% (13 3,15%

ad (I 2017: 1,80 1§ 3,15%) O ad owbnida 1910 (89 3 J.

(ii) A9l iazndlnz Iy

NZUINW 91 (83 U — UAAZY TUIRUZNIUERU

14. FUSU*)

gmeuniaiIMe ludeqdy (Dossiiviui

21)
nencsdinge
22089619, (Jus 1Az EUSUY (i)

P
[=)

Jensulnwgdudy v

2
P-4

2018

a

ny

1.213.174.048
9.849.741.435
6.695.030.589

17.757.946.072

13019z U0.

guznetudelfiutng

2017

[x

ny

1.352.617.400
9.294.094.496
3.266.496.278

13.913.208.174

(i) 99083813, (Juis Az tidusys) njofuvouuizuldianinEy: Guluin s

My WFzoue).

o9 23
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16.
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18.

g9 24

Nulnnzujunencio

AUINNZUIY

(JuSsSeINUALUIUMUNENLSO

nudisutmogefusisegnuazusuniuws Bl 5896 wWi:

Suh 31 Huon

(JuRIS9IMUATUIUNIY Clufiusngtd muinoedgwmzio
283Ny (21dse3iIfingndiugrdu.

AMuSunendy way MUSULIEWET, J00

AuSunencdy

uSunenyPNINAT
AuSunsnyIMmnLUInI

Auvnenidy

1UML0eNIURNIN
1UUNSNDUIINNEUINI
MUPVOeNdURNIIF0EL

uSunentde war wSulitnudiiiv, goR

MUSUNNIU AL Sl JoR

MUSUNINIUIU QT S8l
AouSuahgUANNdsuPlHfgu

sy lou
ULV
AUSUNNIIUSU

2018
Au
301.500.000.000

2018

bl
1.114.186.014
599.828.588

1.714.014.602

2018
nu

34.940.925.937
19.420.758.355
54.361.684.292

(1.040.540.174)
(6.147.009.313)
(13.756.497.591)
(20.944.047.078)

33.417.637.214

2018
nu

747.638.210
313.747.940
118.054.564
313.307.008
1.492.747.722

2017
bild]
301.500.000.000

2017

bild]
190.340.872
923.845.142

1.114.186.014

NnzInAeIcdITU 10% 2939 G0

2017
bi1d]

31.5655.104.150
19.894.767.560
51.449.871.710

(1.111.664.112)
(4.294.839.698)
(13.662.788.903)

(19.069.292.713)

32.380.578.997

2017
bid]

1.374.259.030
467.629.953
183.032.134
212.935.957
2.237.857.074

o

N



19.

20.

21.

o9 25

UANLINNINIUIU (AT o
QUL
MuMUPNaRIWILTUNIUTs UG

MuSUNWUIU €T Hreoi, 06

(Juihisu waz afig1usureegusingw

(S997 (T (Juiiiou
(uluiin
108 U929 ingIu

AWNUNIVINIV QT WNUHY

QIS

YNNI UIY] 1T Y19IEN1
AMyNUNWLTIUW

AUNUA[UGIZFOZ1

a1l unwdsw
2wwdIS1oun0IURTOON
AYNUNRIUIUENINDWYSN W
YWNI9UzNIUH9INIWY

eMLAAAUN €2 A1BUF
YWAWNIWOLYIN ([T NJOESIFNNIRAL UL
AMPPUNNIUIL €T (FuonoyuazuedIImIu
a8 unudSnwduy

ANV INSUNAR

(66.661.220)

(126.838.200)
(193.499.420)

1.299.248.302

2018
nu

7.447.126.490
1.734.563.915
1.024.435.543

10.206.125.948

2018

fu
1.358.508.400
1.663.730.367
538.551.577
365.160.224
218.009.537
241.062.354
269.750.000
356.114.192
99.368.463
208.160.960
392.020.213
132.949.648

5.843.385.935

(92.945.797)

(118.900.307)
(211.846.104)
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The Company’s Financial Statement

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 2017

Note LAK LAK
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central bank 4 482.894.123.825 515.899.129.791
Deposits with other banks 5 0.282.828.117 10.747.859.869
Loans and advances to customers 7 461.742.848.530 423.243.217.212
Property and equipment 8 14.669.151.454 16.667.492.895
Intangible assets 9 1.257.870.977 2.579.639.138
Other assets 10 18.140.834.713 16.422.676.163
TOTAL ASSETS 087.987.657.616 985.560.015.068
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 11 39.755.944.108 39.624.605.025
Deposits from other banks 12 148.000.819.125 145.200.899.125
Amount due to parent company 13 463.346.709.610 473.693.349.917
Other liabilities 14 17.757.946.072 13.913.208.174
TOTAL LIABILITIES 668.861.418.915 672.432.062.241
EQUITY
Paid-up capital 15 301.500.000.000 301.500.000.000
Legal reserve 16 1.714.014.602 1.114.186.014

Retained earnings

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

15.912.224.099

10.513.766.813

319.126.238.701

313.127.952.827

987.987.657.616

985.560.015.068

The accompanying notes on pages 67 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements. Independent
auditor’s report — pages 114 to 115.

Page 63



The Company’s Financial Statement

STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 2017
Note(s) LAK LAK
Interest income 54.361.684.292 51.449.871.710
Interest expense (20.944.047.078) (19.069.292.713)
NET INTEREST INCOME 17 33.417.637.214 32.380.578.997
Loan impairment charges 7 (5.898.770.438) (5.681.357.456)
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER
LOAN IMPAIRMENT CHARGES 27.518.866.776 26.699.221.541
Fee and commission income 1.492.747.722 2.237.857.074
Fee and commission expense (193.499.420) (211.846.104)
NET FEE AND COMMISSION
INCOME 18 1.299.248.302 2.026.010.970
Foreign exchange gain, net 1.187.381.318 2.419.528.464
Payroll and other staff costs 19 (10.206.125.948) (8.700.930.107)
General and administrative expenses 20 (5.843.385.935) (5.260.022.948)
Depreciation and amortization charges 8,9 (4.636.502.237) (4.174.862.267)
TOTAL EXPENSES (19.498.632.802) (15.716.286.858)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9.319.482.276 13.008.945.653
Income tax expense 21 (3.321.196.402) (3.770.494.229)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5.998.285.874 9.238.451.424

The accompanying notes on pages 67 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements. Independent
auditor’s report — pages 114 to 115.
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The Company’s Financial Statement

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

At 1 January 2017
Net profit for the year
Legal reserve

As at 31 December
2017

At 1 January 2018
Net profit for the year
Legal reserve

As at 31 December
2018

Paid-up capital Legal reserve Retained earnings Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK
301.500.000.000 190.340.872 2.199.160.531 303.889.501.403
- - 9.238.451.424 9.238.451.424
- 923.845.142 (923.845.142) -
301.500.000.000 1.114.186.014 10.513.766.813  313.127.952.827
301.500.000.000 1.114.186.014 10.513.766.813  313.127.952.827
- - 5.998.285.874 5.998.285.874
- 599.828.588 (599.828.588) -
301.500.000.000 1.714.014.602 15.912.224.099 319.126.238.701

The accompanying notes on pages 67 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements. Independent
auditor’s report — pages 114 to 115.
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The Company’s Financial Statement

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2018 2017
Note(s) LAK LAK
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 9.319.482.276 13.008.945.653
Adjustments for:
Loan impairment charges 7 5.898.770.438 5.681.357.456
Depreciation and amortization charges 8,9 4.636.502.237 4.174.862.267
Foreign exchange gain, net (1.187.381.318) (2.419.528.464)
Interest and similar income 17 (54.361.684.292) (51.449.871.710)
Interest and similar expense 17 20.944.047.078 19.069.292.713
Net cash flows used in operations before
changes in operating assets and
liabilities (14.750.263.581) (11.934.942.085)
Decrease in statutory deposits with BOL 4 430.963.272 858.590.251
Increase in loans and advances to
customers 7 (44.810.549.715) (99.098.301.372)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 1.189.698.174 (367.714.148)
Increase/(decrease) in deposits from
customers 11 131.339.083 (3.358.510.557)
Increase in deposits from banks 12 2.799.920.000 91.199.920.000
(Decrease)/increase in deposits from
parent company 13 (11.109.700.000) 16.192.760.000
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 478.885.638 (12.305.526.721)
Interest received 55.447.402.281 50.340.909.782
Interest paid (20.388.400.139) (17.064.183.365)
Income tax paid 21 (3.460.639.754) (2.532.860.585)
Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities (34.041.344.741) 11.930.141.200
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Placement in term fixed deposit with central
bank (11.850.000.000) (414.650.000.000)
Purchases of property and equipment (1.197.039.714) (4.288.302.634)
Purchases of intangible fixed assets (119.352.921) (575.194.453)
Net cash used in investing activities (13.166.392.635) (419.513.497.087)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (47.207.737.376) (407.583.355.887)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 6 108.805.522.454 514.569.080.415
Effect of foreign exchange difference 1.318.662.930 1.819.797.926
Cash and cash equivalents, ending 6 62.916.448.008 108.805.522.454

The accompanying notes on pages 67 to 89 form an integral part of these financial statements. Independent

auditor’s report — pages 114 to 115.
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

RHB Bank Lao Limited (the Bank) is a commercial bank incorporated and registered in Lao
People’s Democratic Republic (Lao P.D.R.).

The Bank is a limited company by 100% foreign investment under the laws of Lao P.D.R. The Bank
operate its banking business under the Law on Commercial Bank, No. 03/NA, dated 26 December
2006 and under the regulations of Bank of Lao P.D.R (BOL). The Bank had received its Banking
License No.10/BOL, dated 30 April 2014 and Enterprise Registration Certificate No.0069/ERA
dated 23 January 2018.

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide comprehensive banking and related financial
services in Lao P.D.R.

The Bank is 100% fully owned by RHB Bank Berhad. The initial registered capital of the Bank is
LAK 301.500.000.000 with 30.000.000 shares and issue price of LAK 10.050 (2014: LAK 10.050).
The actual paid up capital as at 31 December 2018 is remained at LAK 301.500.000.000 (2014:
LAK 301.500.000.000)

The registered office of the Bank is at Unit No.1, House No. 008, Kaisone Road, Phonesa Ard
Village, Lao P.D.R.

The Bank’s BOD has reviewed these financial statements and approved for their issuance on 15
March 2019.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting policies of the Bank
and the relevant accounting regulations and notifications of BOL. The accounting
principles applied may differ from generally accepted accounting principles adopted in
other countries and jurisdictions. The accompanying financial statements are not intended
to present the financial position and financial performance in accordance with other
jurisdictions. Consequently, these financial statements are addressed only to those who are
informed about the Bank’s accounting policies and the relevant accounting regulations and
notifications of BOL.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions affecting the amounts reported as assets and liabilities, the disclosure of any
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the amounts of
revenues and expenses in the reported periods. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ from
those estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
2.2 Measurement and presentation currency

The Bank maintains its records in Lao Kip (LAK) and presents financial statements in
LAK.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.3

2.4

25

2.6

2.7

Financial instruments

The Bank's significant financial assets and liabilities include cash and balances with central
bank, deposits with other banks, loans and advances, deposit from customers, deposits from
other banks, amount due to parent company, other receivables and other payables. The
accounting policies for the recognition and measurement of these items are disclosed in the
respective accounting policies.

Recognition of interest income and expense
Interest income recognition

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis and is recognized at the nominal interest
rates stipulated in the loan contracts with clients except in relation to non-performing
accounts.

Per BOL No0.134/AD, dated 13 June 2011, where an account becomes non-performing, the
recording of interest is suspended and interest income already recognized will be reversed.
Interest income will be recognized if accrued interest on non-performing loans will be
subsequently collected. Customer accounts are deemed to be non-performing where
repayments are in arrears for more than three months or 89 days. This is in line with the
regulations of BOL.

Interest expense

Interest expense on deposits from customers and banks are recognised on an accrual basis
and at the approved interest rates.

Recognition of fee and commission income

Fee and commission income from the various activities of the Bank is accrued using the
following bases:

e Loan arrangement fees and commissions on services and facilities extended to
customers are recognised on the occurrence of such transactions.

e Commitment fees and guarantees on services and facilities extended to customers are
recognised as income over the period in which the services and facilities are extended.

e Service charges and processing fees are recognised when the service is provided.
Foreign currency transactions and translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than LAK at year end are
translated into LAK at exchange rates ruling on the statement of the financial report date.
Income and expenses arising in foreign currencies during the period are converted into
LAK at rates ruling on the transaction dates. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of such monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in the statement of income when earned and incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and short-term deposits
maturing within thirty (30) days.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.8

2.9

2.10

211

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are originated by the Bank providing money to a customer for purposes
other than short-term profit taking. They are stated at the outstanding principal balances
less an impairment allowance for doubtful loans and advances, to reflect the estimated
recoverable amount. Loans and advances, except bank overdrafts, are shown exclusive of
accrued interest receivable.

Provision for credit losses

In accordance with regulation 324/BOL dated 19 April 2011, the Bank is required to
classify loans and create a provision for impairment losses. Accordingly, loans are
classified into performing loans or non-performing loans based on their payment arrears
status and other qualitative factors. Loans classified as normal/pass (group A) and
watch/special mention (group B) is considered as performing loans. Loans classified as
substandard (group C), doubtful (group D) and loss (group E) are considered as non-
performing loans.

In accordance with the newly issued regulation 512/BOL dated 29 June 2018, the new
method of provision calculation mentions that banks can take into consideration the
collateral value with a certain prescribed percentage, indicated in the regulation, to be
deducted from the loan outstanding before applying the provision rates.

Provisions are categorised as general and specific based on the loan classification. Below
is the summary of provision rates applicable for each loan classification as at the balance
sheet date.

Group Category Number of days past due Provision rate
Performing (general)

A Normal or pass Within 29 days 0.5%

B Watch or special mention 30 to 89 days 3%
Non-Performing (Specific)

C Substandard 90 to 179 days 20%

D Doubtful 180 to 359 days 50%

E Loss From 360 days 100%

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. Computer software licences are subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. These costs are
amortised over the estimated useful life of 2 years.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of income during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

211

2.12

2.13

2.14

Property and equipment

Depreciation of property and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis to write
down the cost of each asset to its residual value over the estimated useful life, at the
following annual rates:

Category Depreciation rate
Motor vehicles 20%

Office equipment 20%

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Buildings and improvements 5%

Computer equipment 20%

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period. There are no material adjustments arising from the review
that would require disclosure in the financial statements.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount
and are included in statement of income. At the end of the reporting period, the Bank
assesses whether there is any indication of impairment. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carrying amount of the asset is written down to its recoverable amount.

Statutory deposits

Under the requirement of the Law on Commercial Bank dated 16 January 2007, commercial
banks are required to appropriate net profit to regulatory reserve fund, business expansion
fund, and other funds.

In accordance with the regulation on capital adequacy No.1/BOL dated 28 August 2002 by
the Governor of BOL and other relevant guidance, commercial banks are required to
provide statutory reserve at the rate of from 5% to 10% of profit after tax depending on the
decision of the Board of Directors.

Operating lease - for lessee

Leases of assets where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of
income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Employee benefit

a) Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries paid, annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

b) Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Bank by the National Social
Security Fund Department which belongs to the Ministry of Labour and Social Welfare.
The Bank is required to contribute to these post-employment benefits by paying social
insurance premium to the Social Insurance Agency at the rate of 6.00% of employee’s basic
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Employee benefit
b) Post-employment benefits

salary on a monthly basis. The Bank has no further obligation concerning post-
employment benefits for the employees other than this.

c) Termination benefits

In accordance with Article 90 of the Amended Labour Law issued by the President of Lao
People’s Democratic Republic on 18 January 2014, the Bank has the obligation to pay
allowance for employees who are terminated by dismissal in the following cases:

o Compensation for the cancellation of employment contracts shall be 10% of the last
salary multiplied by the total number of months worked;

e For unjustified termination of employment contracts in accordance with the Article 88
of the Amended Labour law, compensation will be 15% of the last salary multiplied by
the total number of months worked; and

e Cancellation of employment contracts for reasons not specified in the Amended Labour
Law, the Bank must implement compensation in accordance with the agreement
between the Bank and the employee.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Tax

Provision is made for taxation on the current year’s profits, based on the Tax Law governing
taxation within Lao P.D.R. The Bank is subject to 24% (2017: 24%) on total taxable profit,
and it shall be paid on quarterly basis. This is in accordance with Article 29: Profit Tax
Rates of the amended Tax Law no.023/NA dated 28 January 2016.

Tax losses incurred in any tax year can be carried forward to offset against profit realised
in the following three tax years from the year loss was incurred subject to certification by
the National Audit Authority or an independent audit company and with the
acknowledgement of the tax authorities. Upon expiration of such period, any remaining
loss not so deducted may no longer be deducted from profits. This is in accordance with
Avrticle 39: Carrying Forward annual losses of the amended tax law.

Related parties

Enterprises or individuals that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
control, or are under controlled by, or are under common control with, the Bank, including
holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the Bank.
Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of
the Bank that gives them significant influence over the Bank, key management personnel,
including directors and officers of the Bank and close members of the family of these
individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.17

Related parties

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The guidelines and policies adopted by the Bank to manage the risks that arise in the conduct of its
business activities are as follows:

3.1

3.2

3.3

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential loss of revenue and principal in the form of specific provisions
as a result of defaults by the borrowers or counterparties through its lending and investing
activities. The primary exposure to credit risk arises through its loans and advances. The
amount of credit exposure in this regard is represented by the carrying amounts of the assets
on the balance sheet. The lending activities are guided by the Bank’s credit policy to ensure
that the overall objectives in the area of lending are achieved i.e., that the loans portfolio is
strong and healthy and credit risks are well diversified. The credit policy documents are the
credit control and recovery manual, credit operations manual, and credit policy manual.
Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Bank’s business; management therefore carefully
manages its exposure to credit risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse movement in the level of market prices
or rates, the two key components being foreign currency exchange risk and interest rate
risk.

(iii) Foreign currency exchange risk

Foreign currency exchange risk refers to the risk of adverse exchange rate movements
on foreign currency exchange positions taken from time to time. The Bank maintains a
policy of not exposing itself to large foreign exchange positions. Any foreign currency
exchange open positions are monitored against the operating requirements,
predetermined position limits and stop-loss limits.

(iv) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in
the levels of interest rate and shifts in the composition of the assets and liabilities.
Interest rate risk is managed through close monitoring of returns on investment, market
pricing and cost of funds. The potential reduction in net interest income from an
unfavourable interest rate movement is monitored against the risk tolerance limits set.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the ability to maintain sufficient liquid assets to meet its financial
commitments and obligations when they fall due at a reasonable cost. The management of
the Bank closely monitors all inflows and outflows and maturity gaps. Movements in loans
and customers’ deposits are monitored and liquidity requirements adjusted to ensure
sufficient liquid assets to meet its financial commitments and obligations as and when they
fall due.



4. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK

2018 2017
LAK LAK
Cash on hand (note 4.1) 11.935.233.588 14.814.425.389
Balances with central bank other than long term
fixed deposit and mandatory reserve deposits
(note 4.2) 41.698.386.303 83.243.237.196
Included in cash and cash equivalents (note 6) 53.633.619.891 98.057.662.585
Long term fixed deposit and mandatory reserve
deposits with central bank (note 4.3) 429.260.503.934 417.841.467.206
482.894.123.825 515.899.129.791
4.1 CASH ON HAND
2018 2017
LAK LAK
Cash on hand — LAK 5.177.501.000 7.605.735.500
Cash on hand — foreign currency 6.757.732.588 7.208.689.889
11.935.233.588 14.814.425.389
4.2 BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK OTHER THAN MANDATORY RESERVE
DEPOSITS
2018 2017
LAK LAK
Demand deposit 41.698.386.303 83.243.237.196

4.3 LONG TERM AND FIXED DEPOSIT AND MANDATORY RESERVE DEPOSITS WITH

CENTRAL BANK

2018 2017

LAK LAK

Compulsory reserve (i) 2.755.503.934 3.186.467.206
Special deposit (ii) 5.000.000 5.000.000
Long term fixed deposit (iii) 426.500.000.000 414.650.000.000
429.260.503.934 417.841.467.206

(iv)  These are deposits maintained in BOL as per BOL regulations. The balance is
adjusted and calculated at 5% of LAK and 10% of other foreign currencies, such as
Thailand Baht (THB) and United State Dollar (USD), on the average balance of
bank and customer deposits, such as savings accounts, current accounts and term
deposits as of the year. These deposits do not earn interest.

v) The Bank maintains an additional statutory capital deposit with BOL. This deposit

amount is considered as a guarantee for the operations. Per regulation No.01/BOL
dated 28 January 2010, commercial banks and foreign branch which have
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4. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK

4.3 LONG TERM AND FIXED DEPOSIT AND MANDATORY RESERVE
DEPOSITS WITH CENTRAL BANK

(i) permanent office, no longer needs to appropriate a reserve of 25% of the registered
capital and the investment capital. This deposit does not earn interest.

(vi)  Long term fixed deposits maintained with BOL earn interest of 4.50% (2017: 4.5%)
per annum with term of 3 years.

5. DEPOSITS WITH OTHER BANKS

Deposits with other banks are analysed as follows:
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a) Analysis by institution
2018 2017
LAK LAK
Balances with domestic banks
Public Bank Berhad - Vientiane Branch 5.277.400.000 9.319.700.000
Banque Pour Le Commerce Exterieur Lao
Vientiane Branch 2.699.410.571 -
7.976.810.571 9.319.700.000
Balances with overseas banks
RHB Bank Berhad — Thailand 135.451.276 541.927.263
RHB Bank Berhad — Malaysia 1.170.566.270 886.232.606
1.306.017.546 1.428.159.869
9.282.828.117 10.747.859.869
b) Analysis by currency
2018 2017
LAK LAK
Domestic banks
LAK 1.027.224.904 -
UusD 1.543.806.315 1.658.600.000
THB 5.405.779.352 7.661.100.000
7.976.810.571 9.319.700.000
Overseas banks
uUsD 1.170.566.270 886.232.606
THB 135.451.276 541.927.263
1.306.017.546 1.428.159.869
9.282.828.117 10.747.859.869



6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with central bank (note 4)
Deposits with other banks (note 5)

7. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Loans and advances to customers
Provision

Loans and advances to customers are analysed as follows:

a) Analysis by currency

LAK
usb
THB

b) Analysis by status of loan

Performing loans
Non-performing loans

c) Analysis by classification of BOL

Performing loans

Normal

Special mention
Non-performing loans
Substandard

Doubtful

Loss
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2018 2017

LAK LAK
53.633.619.891 98.057.662.585
9.282.828.117 10.747.859.869
62.916.448.008 108.805.522.454
2018 2017

LAK LAK
477.123.940.058 432.594.256.690
(15.381.091.528) (9.351.039.478)
461.742.848.530 423243.217.212
2018 2017

LAK LAK
399.723.573.466 350.462.650.574
63.519.964.079 67.960.029.460
13.880.402.153 14.171.576.656
477.123.940.058 432.594.256.690
2018 2017

LAK LAK
426.213.067.229 419.195.825.761
50.910.872.829 13.398.430.929
477.123.940.058 432.594.256.690
2018 2017

LAK LAK
414.610.466.979 385.168.556.656
11.602.600.250 34.027.269.105
11.121.701.118 1.163.656.730
26.536.053.034 12.234.774.199
13.253.118.677 -
477.123.940.058 432.594.256.690



7. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
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d) Analysis by relationship

Customers

e) Analysis by economic sector

Industrial

Construction

Commercial

Transport and telecommunication
Service

Agriculture

Handicraft
Others

f) Analysis by resident status

Resident
Non-resident

g) Analysis by security

Secured

2018 2017

LAK LAK
477.123.940.058 432.594.256.690
2018 2017

LAK LAK
25.871.339.664 25.030.778.255
50.203.391.054 52.195.301.311
119.258.792.733 98.616.557.912
16.248.350.479 18.112.404.614
165.806.258.552 144.979.025.775
1.078.230.627 1.086.721.552
2.878.893.449 2.975.384.671
95.778.683.500 89.598.082.600
477.123.940.058 432.594.256.690
2018 2017

LAK LAK
431.451.656.219 400.089.947.254
45.672.283.839 32.504.309.436

477.123.940.058

432.594.256.690

The movement in the allowance for performing loans is as follows:

General provision

Beginning balance

Provision charged during the year
Reversal of provision during the year

Foreign exchange difference

At 31 December

2018 2017
LAK LAK
477.123.940.058  432.594.256.690
477.123.940.058  432.594.256.690
2018 2017

LAK LAK
2.995.919.951 1.929.298.416
18.878.843.663 11.636.788.403
(19.432.185.716)  (10.584.287.424)
11.528.642 14.120.556
2.454.106.540 2.995.919,951



7. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
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9) Analysis by security

Specific provision

Beginning balance

Provision charged during the year
Reversal of provision during the year
Utilisation for bad debt written off
Foreign exchange difference

At 31 December

2018
LAK

6.355.119.527
19.169.288.920
(12.717.176.429)
119.752.970

12.926.984.988

The breakdown of as at 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Performing loans (general)
Normal

Special mention
Non-performing loans (specific)
Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

2018
LAK

2.105.922.029

348.184.511
1.194.826.345
6.518.797.852
5.213.360.791

15.381.091.528

2017
LAK

2.340.114.144
12.161.891.962
(7.533.035.485)
(657.588.577)
43.737.483

6.355.119.527

2017
LAK

1.974.995.246
1.020.924.705

232.731.345
6.122.388.182

9.351.039.478



8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Movement of the balance of property and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Additions

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2018
Net book value at 31 December 2018
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Building &
improvements

Office equipment

LAK

13.154.788.577
271.665.671

13.426.454.248

1.490.341.355
654.172.414

2.144.513.769
11.281.940.479

LAK

599.112.220
30.360.067

629.472.287

240.876.400
118.637.837

359.514.237
269.958.050

Computer Furniture &
equipment fixtures Motor vehicles Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK
8.588.777.553 1.113.698.519 1.831.618.592 25.287.995.461
665.358.908 20.621.868 209.033.200 1.197.039.714
0.254.136.461 1.134.320.387 2.040.651.792 26.485.035.175
5.468.837.468 497.091.658 923.355.685 8.620.502.566
1.795.805.376 220.223.636 406.541.892 3.195.381.155
7.264.642.844 717.315.294 1.329.897.577 11.815.883.721
1.989.493.617 417.005.093 710.754.215 14.669.151.454



8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Movement of the balance of property and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Cost
At 1 January 2017
Additions

At 31 December 2017
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2017

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2017
Net book value at 31 December 2017
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Building &
improvements

LAK

10.157.393.824
2.997.394.753

13.154.788.577

982.471.655
507.869.700

1.490.341.355

11.664.447.222

Office Computer Furniture &

equipment equipment fixtures  Motor vehicles Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK
388.326.375 8.103.368.274 841.744.962 1.508.859.392 20.999.692.827
210.785.845 485.409.279 271.953.557 322.759.200 4.288.302.634
599.112.220 8.588.777.553 1.113.698.519 1.831.618.592 25.287.995.461
158.286.872 3.802.382.419 323.824.168 621.583.813 5.888.548.927
82.589.528 1.666.455.049 173.267.490 301.771.872 2.731.953.639
240.876.400 5.468.837.468 497.091.658 923.355.685 8.620.502.566
358.235.820 3.119.940.085 616.606.861 908.262.907 16.667.492.895



9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Movement of the balance of intangible assets is as follows:

2018 2017
LAK LAK
Cost
At 1 January 7.415.250.205 6.840.055.752
Additions 119.352.921 575.194.453
At 31 December 7.534.603.126 7.415.250.205
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 4.835.611.067 3.392.702.439
Charge for the year 1.441.121.082 1.442.908.628
At 31 December 6.276.732.149 4.835.611.067
Net book value at 31 December 1.257.870.977 2.579.639.138
10. OTHER ASSETS
2018 2017
LAK LAK
Prepaid expenses (i) 2.826.877.519 4.138.360.565
Accrued interest and penalty receivable (ii) 14.792.059.281 11.774.509.037
Others (iii) 521.897.913 509.806.561
18.140.834.713 16.422.676.163
Q) Prepaid expenses include advance payments for the electronic equipment insurance, house

and office rental, leased area for the server at BOL, and other prepayments.

(i) Accrued interest receivable includes interest receivable from loans to customers and
deposits with other banks. This also includes penalty receivable for the overdue loans.

(iii)  These include bank supplies such as cheque books, passbooks, and signature verification
slips.
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11. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Deposits from customers are analysed as follows:

a) Analysis by types of deposit account

Current deposits
Saving deposits

Term deposits

b) Analysis by currency

LAK
usb
THB

c) Analysis by maturity

Within 3 months
4 to 6 months

7 to 12 months
Over 12 months
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39.755.944.108

2018
LAK

26.175.136.714
964.328.616
9.238.772.485
3.377.706.293

39.755.944.108

2018 2017

LAK LAK
7.135.485.744 9.835.135.464
11.400.581.449 15.490.024.070
21.219.876.915 14.299.445.491
39.755.944.108 39.624.605.025
2018 2017

LAK LAK
16.747.452.741 15.223.148.716
19.953.528.602 18.949.328.193
3.054.962.765 5.452.128.116

39.624.605.025

2017
LAK

28.970.376.260
1.093.056.470
7.140.100.785
2.421.071.510

39.624.605.025



11. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
d) Analysis by type of customer

Individual

Non-individual

e) Analysis by type of relationship

Staff

Customer

12. DEPOSITS FROM OTHER BANKS

a) Analysis by types of deposit account

Current deposits

Term deposits

b) Analysis by currency

LAK
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2018 2017

LAK LAK
25.232.061.649 27.237.060.545
14.523.882.459 12.387.544.480
.755.944.1 .624.605.02
2018 2017

LAK LAK
4.622.583.167 5.385.898.722
35.133.360.941 34.238.706.303
.755.944.1 .624.605.02
2018 2017

LAK LAK

819.125 899.125
148.000.000.000 145.200.000.000
148.000.819.12 145.200.899.125
2018 2017

LAK LAK
148.000.819.125 145.200.899.125
148.000.819.125 145.200.899.125



12. DEPOSITS FROM OTHER BANKS
c) Analysis by maturity

2018 2017
LAK LAK
Within 3 months 32.000.819.125 24.000.899.125
4 to 6 months 30.000.000.000 18.000.000.000
7 to 12 months 86.000.000.000 103.200.000.000
148.000.819.125 145.200.899.125
13. AMOUNT DUE TO PARENT COMPANY
2018 2017
LAK LAK
Fixed deposits (i) 435.883.000.000 446.992.700.000
Intercompany payable (ii) 27.463.709.610 26.700.649.917

463.346.709.610 473.693.349.917

(iii) Fixed deposits, denominated in USD, carry interest rates ranging from 1.80% to
3.15% (2017: 1.80% to 3.15%) per annum with terms ranging from 1 week to 3
years.

(iv) Intercompany payables include purchases of property and equipment initially made
by RHB Bank Berhad - Malaysia during the start-up phase of the Bank.

14. OTHER LIABILITIES

2018 2017

LAK LAK

Current income tax liability (note 21) 1.213.174.048 1.352.617.400
Accrued interest payable 9.849.741.435 9.294.094.496
Accruals, provisions and other liabilities (i) 6.695.030.589 3.266.496.278
17.757.946.072 13.913.208.174

(i) Accruals, provisions, and other liabilities include banker’s cheques, accruals for utilities, bonus,
and other liabilities to suppliers.
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15.

16.

17.
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PAID-UP CAPITAL

2018 2017

LAK LAK
Paid-up capital 301.500.000.000 301.500.000.000
LEGAL RESERVE
The movement in legal reserve fund during the year is presented below:

2018 2017

LAK LAK
At 1 January 1.114.186.014 190.340.872
Additional during the year 599.828.588 923.845.142
At 31 December 1.714.014.602 1.114.186.014

A legal reserve shall be maintained in accordance with the Law on Enterprise, where the Bank shall
annually convert ten percent of its net profit into the reserve funds after deducting its accumulated

losses.

NET INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

2018 2017
LAK LAK

Interest income
Interest income from customers 34.940.925.937 31.555.104.150
Interest income from banks 19.420.758.355 19.894.767.560
54.361.684.292 51.449.871.710

Interest expense

Interest expense from customers (1.040.540.174)

(1.111.664.112)

Interest expense from banks (6.147.009.313) (4.294.839.698)
Interest expense from parent company (13.756.497.591) (13.662.788.903)

(20.944.047.078) (19.069.292.713)
Net interest and similar income 33.417.637.214 32.380.578.997



18.

19.

20.
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NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
Loan processing fees

Penalty fees

Commitment fees

Other fees

Fee and commission expense
Commission expenses

Wire transfer fees

Net fee and commission income

PAYROLL AND OTHER STAFF COSTS

Salaries and wages
Bonus
Other staff costs

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Rental

Repair and maintenance
Insurance

Professional fees
Communication expense
Utilities

2018
LAK

747.638.210
313.747.940
118.054.564
313.307.008

1.492.747.722

(66.661.220)
(126.838.200)

(193.499.420)

1.299.248.302

7.447.126.490
1.734.563.915
1.024.435.543

10.206.125.948

2018
LAK

1.358.508.400
1.663.730.367

538.551.577
365.160.224
218.009.537
241.062.354

2017
LAK

1.374.259.030
467.629.953
183.032.134
212.935.957

2.237.857.074

(92.945.797)
(118.900.307)

(211.846.104)

2.026.010.97

6.234.147.511
1.524.186.777
942.595.819

8.700.930.107

982.876.800
1.419.421.456
487.677.648
376.931.492
211.003.865
204.228.434



21.

Security fee 269.750.000 202.350.000
Office stationery expense 356.114.192 181.057.269
Meal and travelling 99.368.463 79.205.475
Marketing and public relations 208.160.960 152.520.595
Board of directors’ fees and allowances 392.020.213 449.580.390
Other administrative expenses 132.949.648 513.169.524

5.843.385.935 5.260.022.948

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

In accordance with the amended Lao Tax Law No. 023 dated 28 January 2016 stipulated by the
President of the National Assembly, applicable profit tax that should be applied to both domestic
and foreign enterprises that hold legal entities is 24% (2017: 24%) of total taxable profit income.
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2018 2017

LAK LAK
Profit before tax for the year 9.319.482.276 13.008.945.653
Non-deductible expenses 17.748.884.970 12.619.208.309
Non-taxable income (13.230.048.902) (9.917.761.342)
Taxable profit for the year 13.838.318.344 15.710.392.620
Income tax expense at applicable tax rate 3.321.196.402 3.770.494.229
Analysis of the income tax payable is as follows:

2018 2017

LAK LAK
At 1 January 1.352.617.400 114.983.756
Income tax expense 3.321.196.402 3.770.494.229
Tax paid during the year (3.460.639.754) (2.532.860.585)
At 31 December (note 14) 1.213.174.048 1.352.617.400



22.
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RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

The Bank is 100% owned by RHB Bank Berhad — Malaysia, which is the Bank’s ultimate
controlling party.

A few numbers of banking transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal course
of business, which were mostly deposits. There were no loans issued to related parties.

Deposits to key management personnel comprised of savings and fixed deposits, all of which are
unsecured. Savings deposits are repayable on demand and carry interest rates ranging from 1.60%
to 2.00% per annum (2017: 1.85% to 2.25%), depending on the currency. Fixed deposits carry
interest rates of ranging from 2.00% to 6.75% per annum (2017: 2.50% to 6.35%) depending on the
term and currency. Fixed deposits to key management personnel have terms ranging from 1 to 12
months.

The volume of related-party transactions, outstanding balances, at the year-end, and relating

expense and income for the year are as follows:

2018 2017
LAK LAK
RHB Bank Berhad - Malaysia (Holding Bank)
(&) Term deposit
At 1 January 886.232.606 1.374.273.832
Deposits transferred/(withdrawn) during the year 259.006.659 (474.444.526)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 25.327.005 (13.596.700)
As at 31 December (note 5) 1.170.566.270 886.232.606

(b) Fixed deposits

At 1 January 446.992.700.000 430.799.940.000
Deposits received/(withdrawn) during the year (23.220.400.000) 11.930.540.000
Foreign exchange loss 12.110.700.000 4.262.220.000
As at 31 December (note 13) 435.883.000.000 446.992.700.000
Interest expense (note 17) 13.756.497.591 13.662.788.903
(c) Intercompany payable
At 1 January 26.700.649.917 26.359.365.835
Foreign exchange loss 763.059.693 341.284.082
As at 31 December (note 13) 27.463.709.610 26.700.649.917
Monthly swift payment 126.838.200 118.900.307



22.

23.

RELATED PARTY BALANCES TRANSACTIONS

RHB Bank Thailand
(@  Term deposit
At 1 January

Deposits transferred/(withdrawn) during the
year

Foreign exchange gain/(loss)
At 31 December (note 5)

Director and key management personnel
(a) Deposits from customers

At 1 January

Deposits received during the year

Foreign exchange loss/(gain)

As at 31 December

Interest expense
(b) Loans and advances to customers
At 1 January
Loans disbursed during the year
Loan repayments during the year
As at 31 December
Interest income

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

541.927.263

(410.839.256)
4.363.269
135.451.276

4.584.745.725

(612.060.995)
76.123.013

4.048.807.74

23.542.982

11.939.989.411
1.866.223.358

(235.034.933)

13.571.177.836

578.661.652

4.882.572.000

483.000.061

113.513.114

(54.585.912)
541.927.263

2.534.204.725
2.075.613.747

(25.072.747)
4.584.745.725

24.070.637

1.996.612.367
10.094.531.757

(151.154.713)

11.939.989.411

301.983.035

3.912.132.408

At 31 December 2018, the Bank had the contractual amounts of the Bank’s off-financial position,

financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to customers. Unutilised overdrafts are those

credit limit provided to customers but have not yet been withdrawn as at 31 December 2018.
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23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(a) Credit facilities

2018 2017

LAK LAK

Unutilised overdraft 4.841.434.287 11.767.129.279
Undisbursed loans 15.323.000.000 16.919.000.000
20.164.434.287 28.686.129.279

(b) Operating lease

2018 2017

LAK LAK

From 1 to 5 years 336.344.390 1.279.486.790
Over 5 years 29.926.229.048 34.232.625.585
30.262.573.438 35.512.112.375

(c) Taxation contingencies

The taxation system in the Lao PDR is relatively new and is characterised by numerous taxes and
frequently changing legislation, which is often unclear, contradictory, and subject to interpretation.
Often, differing interpretations exist among numerous taxation authorities and jurisdictions. Taxes
are subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities, who are enabled by law to impose
severe fines, penalties and interest charges. These facts may create tax risks in Lao PDR
substantially more significant than in other countries. Management believes that it has adequately
provided for tax liabilities based on its interpretation of tax legislation. However, the relevant
authorities may have differing interpretations and the effects could be significant
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General Information

Issuer
Type of Business

Headquarters

Registration Number :

Homepage
Telephone
Facsimile
Registered Capital

Branches

Telephone
Facsimile

Branches

Telephone
References

Auditor

RHB Bank Lao Limited
The Company conducts banking business and is member No. 36
of The Bank of Lao PDR.

o Deposit

o Lending

o Foreign currency transaction

o Service between customers and other banking service

No.01, House No0.008, Kaysone Phomvihane Road, Phonsa Ard Village,
Saysettha District, Vientiane, Lao PDR.

01-000194704515

https://www.rhbgroup.com/laos

+856(21) 455116

+856(21) 455112

LAK 301.500.000.000

: Sithan Neua Branch

Unit.06, Souphanouvong Road, Sithan Neua Village, Sikhottabong District,

Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR

+856(21) 221010
+856(21) 221013

Dongdok Branch

Unit.08, Dongdok Road, Saphangmeuk Village, Xaythany District,
Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR

+856(21) 773050

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited.
4th Floor, ANZ Commercial Building, 33 Lane Xang Avenue, P.O. Box 7003

Vientiane, Lao PDR

Telephone: +856 (21) 222 718-9
Facsimile: +856 (21) 222 723

www.pwc.com/la
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RHB Banking Group

The RHB Banking Group has a proud history, having won many prestigious awards over the years since
its establishment. It is Malaysia’s fourth largest financial services group and enjoys a wide presence across
the ASEAN region. The Group has aspirations to emerge as one of the top three financial services groups
in the ASEAN region and in Hongkong by 2022.

The Group’s entire range of financial products and services are made available to its customers through
its branches as well as its online banking platform.

Our core businesses are streamlined into seven Strategic Business Groups (SBGs):
Group Retail Banking
Group Business & Transaction Banking
Group Wholesale Banking
Group Shariah Business
Group Insurance
Group International Business

RHB Bank Lao Limited

RHB Bank Lao Limited (the Bank) is a commercial bank incorporated and registered in Lao People’s
Democratic Republic (Lao P.D.R.).

The Bank is a limited company with 100% foreign investment under the laws of Lao P.D.R. The Bank
operates its banking business under the Law on Commercial Bank, No. 03/NA, dated 26 December 2006
and regulations of Bank of Lao P.D.R (BOL). The Bank received its Banking License No.10/BOL and
Enterprise Registration Certificate No.0069/ERA on 23 January 2018.

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide comprehensive banking and related financial services
in Lao P.D.R. The Company was established as a limited company on 30 April 2014 with capital
registration of 301.5 Billion Kip.

RHB Bank Lao Limited recently opened 2 branches open as follows:

The Sithan Neua Branch was established on 19" August, 2016. The office is located at Unit 06,
Souphanouvong Road, Sithan Neua Village, Sikhottabong District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.

The new Dongdok branch was established on 26" January, 2018. The office is located at Unit 06,
Dongdok Road, Saphangmuek Village, Xaythany District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.

Products and Services

The Bank is established to conduct banking activities, which include mobilizing and receiving short,
medium and long term deposit funds from various organizations and individuals; lending on a short, medium
and long term basis to various organizations and individuals based on the nature and repayment ability of
the borrowers; conducting foreign currency transactions; providing transaction services between customers;
and other banking services as approved by the Bank of Lao PDR ("BOL"), through the Bank's Head Office
and a branch in Vientiane Capital city.

The Bank offers a full range of retail and commercial banking products and services, including:

Current Account

Savings Account

Fixed Deposit

Remittance and Foreign Exchange
Housing Loan

Overdraft

Term Loan

Revolving Credit

Trade Finance Products and Services
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Current Account

Our RHB Current Account is a powerful cash management tool as it can save you trips to the bank to pay
those bills and expenses. Manage your finances and enjoy these benefits:

Cheque book facility

24-hour ATM facility

Free ATM Card

Monthly statement for easy monitoring
Choice of account in LAK, USD or THB

Savings Account

Our RHB Savings Account paves the way to save for your dream home, your car, your child's education or
even a computer. Grow your family's finances and enjoy these benefits:

Manage your account easily with a Savings Passbook

24-hour ATM facility

Free ATM Card

Earn attractive interest rates — calculated daily, credited monthly
Choice of account in LAK, USD or THB

Fixed Deposit

Our RHB Fixed Deposit offers with attractive interest rates and choice of tenure and is an effective
investment tool. Build your finances and enjoy these benefits:

Earn attractive interest rates

Tenure from 1 month onwards

Short and long-term placements

Auto renewal

Choice of account in LAK, USD or THB

Remittance and Foreign Exchange

Our RHB Remittance can help you move your money within Lao PDR and around the world efficiently and
securely. Transfer funds with ease and enjoy these benefits:

e Choice of major currencies
e Competitive fees and charges

RHB Money Exchange Service allows you to buy and sell currencies such as LAK/USD/THB at the best
possible rates. Exchange your money with ease and enjoy these benefits:

o No fees
o Competitive exchange rates
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Housing Loan

RHB Housing Loan, with flexible options, is the key to owning your dream house. Get the home of your
dreams and enjoy these benefits:

e Financing up to 70% of the property value
e Loan period up to 20 years
e Attractive interest rates

Overdraft

RHB Overdraft facility is designed to meet your financing needs. Expand your business and working capital,
or build your business with us and enjoy these benefits:

e Meet short term financing gap that may arise from the business operating cycle
e Attractive interest rates

Term Loan

RHB Term Loan, with many values added features and flexible options, enables you to start a new business,
expand your current business or provides working capital. Build your business with us and enjoy these
benefits:

e Flexible repayment period of up to 10 years
e Attractive interest rates

Revolving Credit

RHB Revolving Credit is a short-term credit service designed to provide cash flow in a timely manner to
make up for periodic or seasonal fluctuations of your business. Suitable for businesses with fluctuating or
seasonal incomes. Manage your business with us and enjoy these benefits:

e Meet short term financing gap that may arise from the business operating cycle
e Attractive interest rates

Trade Finance Products and Services

RHB Trade Finance Products and Services help you in your import and export business; take the burden
and worry of non-delivery of goods away from you. Build your business by letting our expertise work for
you. Bank with us, we are here to get things done and help you enjoy these advantages:

Easy and fast process

Help to collect your expert proceeds expeditiously
Help to cut down the risk of business

Competitive commission rates / charges

Flexible term of payments
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Extra-Curricular Activities of RHB Bank Lao Limited
Extra curriculum of RHB Bank Lao Limited in 2018

Activity: “RHB Laos supported the victims affected by flooding in Sanamxay District, Attapue Province,
on 28 July 2018 at Ministry of Labor and Social Welfare”

Fisaat!
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Activity: ’RHB Laos marched with banks to celebrate the establishment of Bank of Lao PDR for 50 years,
on 29 September 2018, at Chao Anouvong Stadium’’
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Activity: “RHB Bank Lao Limited Annual Dinner 2018, on 20 October 2018 at Lao Plaza Hotel”

Activity: “RHB Laos Community Weekend 2018, on 03 November 2018, at Lao Disabled Women
Development Center, Thadeua Village, Hatsaiyfong District, Vientiane Capital”
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Market and Competitive Conditions

Economic growth was 6.7% in 2018, down from 6.9% in 2017, contributed by the power sector and the
recent expansion of the manufacturing of electronic parts and components which is expected to continue.
Mining output is expected to remain flat due to government stop granting mining licenses to investors.

Lao mainly imports oil, machinery and equipment, vehicles, iron and steel, telecommunications equipment,
beverages and cement. Lao’s main imports partner is Thailand which covers 66% of the total portfolio;
other import partners include China and Vietnam. Lao’s main exports are mineral fuels, electrical energy,
copper, wood, rubber, gold, clothing & accessories and vegetable. 2018 was announced as tourism year of
Laos which led to more infrastructure, construction of international and regional hotel chains in Laos such
as Crown Plaza, Double Tree by Hilton, Centara, Sofitel and Amari among others.

Risk Management Policies

The Bank’s business involves taking on risks in a targeted manner and managing them professionally. The
core functions of the Bank’s risk management are to identify all key risks for the Bank, measure these risks,
manage the risk positions and determine capital allocations. The Bank regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and best market practice.

1. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential loss of revenue and principal in the form of specific provisions as a result of
defaults by the borrowers or counterparties through its lending and investing activities. The primary
exposure to credit risk arises through its loans and advances. The amount of credit exposure in this regard
is represented by the carrying amounts of the assets on the statement of financial position. The lending
activities are guided by the Bank’s credit policy to ensure that the overall objectives in the area of lending
are achieved i.e., that the loans portfolio is strong and healthy and credit risks are well diversified. The credit
policy documents the lending policy, collateral policy and credit approval processes.

2. Market Risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate and currency all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements
and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates and foreign exchange
rates.

3. Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Foreign currency exchange risk refers to the risk of adverse exchange rate movements on foreign currency
exchange positions taken from time to time. The Bank maintains a policy of not exposing itself to large
foreign exchange positions. Net opening position is being monitored on a daily basis to check how much of
foreign currency position there is to reduce risk and comply with regulations. Any foreign currency
exchange open positions are monitored against the operating requirements, predetermined position limits
and stop-loss limits.

4. Interest Rate Risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow
risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce losses in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The potential reduction in net interest income from an unfavorable interest
rate movement is monitored against the risk tolerance limits set. The Bank regularly monitors its interest
rate risk to ensure that there are no undue exposures to significant interest rate movement.
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5. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its obligations when they fall due as a result of
customer deposits being withdrawn, cash requirements from contractual commitments, or other cash

outflows, such as debt maturities or margin calls for derivatives.

Such outflows would deplete available cash resources for client lending, trading activities and investments.
In extreme circumstances, lack of liquidity could result in reductions in the statement of financial position
and sale of assets, or potentially an inability to fulfill lending commitments. The risk that the Bank will be
unable to do so is inherent in all banking operations and can be affected by a range of institution-specific
and market-wide events including, but not limited to, credit events, merger and acquisition activity, systemic

shocks and natural disasters.

Board of Directors and Organization Structure

The Bank’s Committees

(1) Board of Directors

As of 31 December 2018, the Board of Directors of RHB Bank Lao Limited consisted of six members as

follows:

No.

Member

Position

1

YBhg Dato’ Khairussaleh Ramli

Non-Independent, Non-Executive Chairman

2 | Mr Ong Seng Pheow Independent Non-Executive Director
3 Encik Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed Independent Non-Executive Director
4 | Mr. Chulapong Yukate Independent Non-Executive Director
5 Mr. Lim Loong Seng Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
6 Ms. Gan Pai Li Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

The Company Secretary is Encik. Azman Shah Md Yaman
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Profile of the Board of Directors

YBHG DATO' KHAIRUSSALEH RAMLI

Group Managing Director/Group Chief Executive Officer
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Malaysian

Dato' Khairussaleh Ramli (Dato' Khairussaleh) was appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive
Chairman of RHB Bank Lao Limited (RHBBLL) on 06 September 2017.

Dato' Khairussaleh Ramli (Dato' Khairussaleh) was appointed as Managing Director of RHB Bank Berhad
and Deputy Group Managing Director of RHB Banking Group on 13 December 2013. He was further
appointed as Group Managing Director/Group Chief Executive Officer of RHB Banking Group on 5 May
2015.

Dato' Khairussaleh holds a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from Washington University
and is a graduate of the Advanced Management Programme, Harvard Business School. He is also a Fellow
Chartered Banker of Asian Institute of Chartered Bankers.

Dato' Khairussaleh has more than 20 years of experience in the financial services and capital markets
industry, where he has held senior positions in well-established regional financial institutions. He is also a
Council member of The Association of Banks in Malaysia and Asian Institute of Chartered Bankers.

His knowledge and experience earned him the "Best CFO in Malaysia Award" in 2010 and 2011 from
Finance Asia and the "Best CFO in Malaysia Award" in 2012 from Alpha Southeast Asia.

Dato’ Khairussaleh’s other directorship in public company includes RHB Capital Berhad (In Member’s
Voluntary Winding Up). He is also a trustee of RHB Foundation
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Ong Seng Pheow

Independent Non-Executive Director
Malaysian

Ong Seng Pheow (Mr Ong) was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director of RHB Bank Lao
Limited (RHBBLL) on 11 January 2017.

Ong Seng Pheow (Mr Ong) was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of RHB Insurance
on 1 January 2008 and was subsequently appointed as the Chairman of RHB Insurance on 23 May 2013.
He also serves as the Chairman of the Board Audit Committee as well as a Member of the Board Technology
Committee and Investment Committee of RHB Insurance.

Mr Ong has over 34 years of audit and accounting experience. He is a Member of the Malaysian Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("MICPA") and Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He was a partner of
Ernst & Young from 1984 to 2003. His last held position in Ernst & Young was as the National Director of
Assurance and Advisory Business Services. He also served on committees and working groups of MICPA.

Mr Ong's other directorships in public companies include RHB Bank Berhad, RHB Trustees Berhad,
Malaysian Trustees Berhad, RHB Holdings Hong Kong Limited, Daiman Development Berhad, LCTH
Corporation Berhad, George Kent (Malaysia) Berhad and HELP International Corporation Berhad.
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Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed
Independent Non-Executive Director
Malaysian

Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed (Encik Aziz Peru) was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director
of RHB Bank Lao Limited (RHBBLL) on 11 January 2017.

Encik Aziz Peru was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of RHB Bank on 7 February
2011. He also serves as a Member of the Board Credit Committee.

Encik Aziz Peru attended various training programmes at the Harvard Business School and Pacific Bankers
Rim programmes in the United States of America.

Encik Aziz Peru is currently the Chief Executive Officer/Director of As-Salihin Trustee Berhad, a trust
company specializing in Islamic estate planning. He held various Senior Management positions in the
banking industry with almost 30 years in an accomplished career track spanning management of branch
network and retail banking. He spent most of his working years at Malayan Banking Berhad, where his last
position was General Manager, Consumer Banking Division. He was also formerly the Senior General
Manager of AmBank Berhad from 2002 to 2005. During the years in the banking industry, he was appointed
as Chairman of the Rules Committee of the Association of Banks of Malaysia and has held several other
key positions including as a Board Member of Mayban Property Trust and Mayban Trustees Bhd.

Encik Aziz Peru's other directorships in public companies include RHB Insurance Berhad, RHB Islamic
International Asset Management Berhad and As-Salihin Trustee Berhad.
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Mr. Chulapong Yukate
Independent Non-Executive Director
Thai

Mr Chulapong Yukate was appointed as the Independent Non-Executive Director of RHB Bank Lao
Limited on 25 August 2014. On 1 September 2013, Mr. Chulaphong joined ZICOLaw (Thailand) Limited
as Chairman and is also the Senior Advisor of the ZICOLaw network. Chulapong brings extensive
knowledge to the firm as he has been in the private practice for 30 years, with major areas of practice
including M & A, Projects, Insurance and International Arbitration. Chulapong was a Partner and Of
Counsel in leading international law firms of Deacons in Thailand and Australia, Colin Ng & Partners in
Singapore and Baker & McKenzie in Thailand. He later joined Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited
in Bangkok as a Group General Counsel until July 2013. Chulapong was also a Funding and Managing
Partner of DLA Piper's Bangkok office, where it started with 2 lawyers in 2003 and 3 years later, they had
successfully built up the office to have 25 lawyers.
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Mr. Lim Loong Seng
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Malaysian

Lim Loong Seng was appointed as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of RHB Bank Lao Limited
on 30 May 2014. He is currently the Managing Director / Country Head of RHB Indochina Bank Limited
("RHB Indochina Bank™) based in Cambodia.

He joined RHB Group as Country Head of RHB Indochina Bank, Cambodia (formerly known as OSK
Indochina Bank Limited) since September 2008. With more than 34 years of working experience of which
30 years is in the banking industry, he has pioneered the establishment of RHB Indochina Bank Limited
which has expanded its network to nine (9) branches with total staff strength of 170 employees today. Prior
to joining RHB Group, he was last attached to Public Bank Berhad ("Public Bank™), Malaysia as Director
of Banking Operation. He had wide ranging exposure and experience in commercial banking having served
at both branch and head office level in banking operation, credit, sales & marketing, business and product
development at senior management level at Public Bank.

He holds a Diploma in Agriculture and a Bachelor of Science in Agribusiness from University Putra
Malaysia. He was awarded the SEARCA Gold Medal as well as Harvard Business Alumni Club Malaysia
Gold Medal award when he graduated in 1986. He also has a MBA in International Business from
University of Sunderland, United Kingdom. He is member of the Institute of Bank Malaysia and also a
Licensed Dealer certified and approved by the Securities Exchange Commission of Cambodia.

Besides being a Board member of RHB Indochina Bank, he is also a Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director of RHB OSK Indochina Securities Limited.
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Ms. Gan Pai Li

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysian

Gan Pai Li was appointed as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of RHB Bank Lao Limited
(RHBBLL) and Member of The Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee on 6
September 2017.

Gan Pai Li is currently the Group Chief Strategy & Transformation Officer who leads and executes the
Annual Strategic Planning Cycle. She is responsible for collaborating with all business units across the
Group to establish specific plans, actionable goals and measurable objectives which are aligned with the
Group’s overall strategy.

Prior to joining RHB Banking Group, she held the position of Senior Managing Director, Group Wholesale
Bank, CEQ’s Office as well as the role of Head, Business Management Office in CIMB Investment Bank
Berhad overseeing business performance and regulatory compliance of Group Wholesale Banking
regionally. Besides this, she also held various position in the areas of post M&A integration, business
transformation, green field expansions into ASEAN and various business transformation initiatives across
CIMB Group.

Pai Li holds a Bachelor of Education from University of Malaya, a Master of Business Administration from
the University of Manchester and has more than 20 years of working experience in the financial services
industry from retail, corporate and investment banking, strategy, portfolio management and private equity.
She also has an extensive experience in the integration of businesses and operations arising from mergers
of banks. She is Member of Asian Institute of Chartered Bankers (“AICB”).
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Key Responsibilities

The Board is charged with leading and governing the Company in an effective, efficient and responsible
manner. The Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of their responsibilities to
shareholders/stakeholders and the manner in which the affairs of the Company are managed. They discharge
their roles and duties with integrity, honesty and professionalism within the ambit of the law to serve the
interest of the Company’s sharcholders and stakeholders, and ensure the Company adheres to the highest
standards of corporate governance.

The Board assumes an active role and takes full responsibility for key strategy setting, business plans,
financial objectives and major capital and operating budgets. While the Board scrutinizes the frameworks
and policies proposed by the Management, the Board also monitors the Management’s performance in
implementing the adopted strategies as well as provides direction and advice to ensure the achievement of
the objectives.

Rights and Duties of the Board of Directors

The business of the Bank shall be managed by the Board of Directors who may exercise all such powers of
the Bank, as are not required to be exercised by the Shareholder at the meeting of shareholders; but no
resolution made at the meeting of the shareholders shall invalidate any prior act or decision of the Board of
Directors which would have been valid if that resolution had not been made.

Without limiting the generality thereof, the Board of Directors has the following rights and duties:

1. To elaborate on and implement resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting;

2. To report on the operations of the Bank at the shareholders’ meeting;

3. To explain, answer [related questions], and provide detailed information on the operations at the
shareholders’ meeting;

4. To be responsible for damage caused by their misconduct;

5. To recommend the division of profits into funds and the allocation of dividends at the shareholders’
meeting for consideration;

6. Topropose business plans at the shareholders’ meeting for consideration and approval;

7. To appoint the governance committee, internal audit committee and risk committee of the
Board of Directors;

8. To appoint, transfer or remove the Country Head, (s) and Chief Financial Officer/Head, Finance Division
and;

9. To appoint, transfer or remove the Deputy Country Head based on the recommendation of the Country
Head,;

10.To exercise such other rights and perform such other duties as provided in the charter of the
Bank.

Meetings & Minutes

The Board shall meet at least once in every three (3) months, or more as and when/ required.
Subject to relevant laws and guidelines, the quorum of the meetings shall not be less than half of the total
number of the Directors.

Board Audit Committee

As of 31 December 2018, the Board Audit Committee of RHB Bank Lao Limited consisted of three
members as follows:

No. | Member Position
1 Encik Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed Chairman
2 Mr. Chulapong Yukate Member
3 Mr. Lim Loong Seng Member
The Company Secretary is Encik Azman Shah Md Yaman
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Key Responsibilities

1.

o

10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
19.

20.

21.
22.

The Board Audit Committee (“the Committee’) is directly accountable to the Board and the Board
will continue to be accountable for all matters relating to RHBBL. Whilst the Committee reports to the
Board, all minutes are to be tabled to RHB Bank Berhad ‘s Board Audit Committee as part of group
oversight requirements. Audit reports will also be given as and when required by RHB Bank Berhad’s
Board Audit Committee.

To ensure that the internal audit department is distinct and has the appropriate status within the overall
organizational structure for the internal auditors to effectively accomplish their audit objectives.

To review the effectiveness of internal controls and risk management processes including the scope
of the internal audit program and the appropriateness of the risk assessment methodology employed to
determine the frequency and scope of audits.

To ensure that the reporting relationship of the internal audit staff do not impede the exercise of
independent judgement by the internal auditors. In particular, the reports of internal auditors should
be subject to the clearance of the Managing Director / Country Head or any Executive Directors.

To ensure that all findings and recommendations are resolved effectively and in a timely manner.

To make appropriate public disclosure of the terms of reference and the activities of the Committee in
the entity’s financial statements, if required.

To review quarterly results and year-end financial statements and to recommend the same to the Board
for approval whilst ensuring that they are prepared in a timely and accurate manner complying with all
applicable accounting and regulatory requirements and are promptly published.

To review regularly the adequacy of provisions made and to recommend the same to the Boards for
approval.

To review any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise, including any
transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity.

To review with the external and internal auditors whether the employees of RHBBL have given them
appropriate assistance in discharging their duties.

To review the adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of the internal audit function and that it
has the necessary authority to carry out its works.

To review and approve the internal audit plan, audit charter and the budget for the audit plan.

To ensure that internal audit staff receives necessary training to perform audit work. There shall be a
program of continuing education and training to enable the internal auditors to keep abreast of business
trends and latest developments at both the institution and industry levels, as well as to enhance technical
skills required to effectively support the audit function.

To appraise the performance of the head of internal audit and to review the appraisals of senior staff
members of the internal audit function.

To approve any appointment or termination of the head of internal audit or senior staff members of
the internal audit function and to review any resignations of internal audit staff members and provide
resigning staff members an opportunity to submit reasons for resigning, where necessary.

To review with the external auditors, the nature and scope of their audit plan, their evaluation of the
system of internal controls and their management letter and discuss any matter that the external auditors
may wish to raise in the absence of management, where necessary.

To recommend to the Board on the appointment and the annual reappointment of the external auditors
and assessing their audit fees, after taking into consideration the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors and the cost effectiveness of their audit.

To discuss and review with the external auditors any proposal from them to resign as auditors.

To investigate reasons for any request made by management to dismiss the external auditors, or any
resignation by the external auditors. The results of the investigation shall be disclosed to the full Board
together with the recommendations on proposed actions to be taken.

To review non-audit services rendered by the external auditors together with the related fees and
thereafter approving or recommending the same to the Board for approval (whichever relevant), in
accordance with the Group Policy on Non-Audit Fees payable to the external auditors.

To review the co-ordination of audit activities between external and internal auditors.

To review inspection and examination reports issued by any regulatory authority and to ensure prompt
and appropriate actions are taken in respect of any findings.
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23.

24.

To review the minutes of meetings of management audit committees or other relevant committee (if
any) within RHBBL to the extent permitted by the relevant regulatory authorities and be satisfied that
all matters arising therefrom are being appropriately addressed by these management audit committees.
To perform any other functions as authorized by the Boards.

Rights and Duties of Board Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee shall at the minimum have the following rights and duties:

1.

N

To establish appropriate accounting procedures and accounting controls for the Bank in accordance
with regulations issued by the Bank of the Lao PDR,;

To develop a plan and budget for the Bank’s internal audit;

To monitor the implementation of accounting activities and, if it is deemed necessary, to employ an
external audit;

To assess the quality of service of the external audit company, and the auditor’s independence in relation
to all relationships between the independent external auditor and the Bank;

. To engage (external auditors), to determine the scope of the audit and to terminate the contract of the

external auditor’s subject to the approval of the Board of Directors;

To discuss the annual audited financial statements and quarterly financial statements with relevant
management and the independent external auditor;

To monitor the administrators’ efforts to correct deficiencies described in an audit examination;

To obtain advice and assistance from outside legal, accounting and other advisors as it deems necessary;
To deliver opinions on the issues raised by the Board of Directors and administrators;

To inform the Board of Directors of its decisions on the matters described in items 1,2 and 3, or on other
necessary matters;

. To summarize and evaluate its annual performance;

To meet at least once every two months or as determined by the Board of Directors; and

. To exercise such other rights and performs such other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors and

shareholders’” meeting.

Meetings & Minutes

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)
f)

9)

)

At least four times a year or whenever deemed necessary.
The committee may convene meetings at any place in Lao or other country
The committee is also allowed to carry out resolution by way of circulation
At least twice a year, the Committee shall meet with the external auditor or shareholders without the
presence of the Management or any Executive Board members and upon the request of the external
auditors, the Chairman shall convene a meeting to consider any matter which the external auditors
believe should be brought to the attention of the respective Boards.
The quorum of the meetings shall be two third of the total members.
Resolutions, proposals and matters tabled for approvals at any meeting of the
Committee shall be decided by majority of the members present; and
The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary of the Committee and shall be responsible for:
Drawing up the agenda with the concurrence of the Chairman
Writing and safe-keeping the minutes of meeting and submission to Board.

Board Risk Committee

As of 31 December 2018, The Board Risk Committee of RHB Bank Lao Limited consisted of three
members as follows:

No. | Member Position
1 Mr. Chulapong Yukate Chairman
2 Encik Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed Member
3 Mr. Ong Seng Pheow Member
The Company Secretary is Encik Azman Shah Md Yaman
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Key Responsibilities
Risk Strategy

1.

2.

To provide risk oversight and guidance to RHB Bank Lao (RHBBL)’s business operations through
the support of an effective internal risk management framework and sound risk strategies.

To review and recommend, risk management policies and procedures, controls and systems of
RHBBL in line with the approved risk management philosophy and strategy of RHBBL and RHB
Group.

To ensure that RHBBL’s business and operations are in line with RHBBL’s and the overall RHB
Group’s risk strategy and profile

To deliberate and assess the nature and materiality of the risk exposures and its impact on RHBBL’s
capital and business.

Recommending New/Existing products with material variations in product features to the Board for
approval.

Risk Organization

1.

To oversee the overall management of risks covering market risk management, asset and liability
management, credit risk management, operational risk management and compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations

To establish clear and independent reporting lines and responsibilities for the overall business
activities and risk management and control functions.

To cultivate a proactive risk management and compliance culture within RHBBL, so that risk
management processes are applied in the day-to-day business and activities.

To supervise the independent review of the RHBBL risk management infrastructure, capabilities,
environment and processes where necessary.

Rights and Duties of Board Risk Committee

To avoid or reduce risks that may occur to the Bank, the Board Risk Committee shall, at the minimum, have
the following rights and duties:

1.

Hw

To establish policies and procedures for identifying, monitoring and managing credit, market, country,
operational and other risks in accordance with the regulations issued by the Bank of the Lao PDR, to
monitor their implementation, and to report to the Board of Directors thereon;

To monitor and report on compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to credit and other risks,
and to report to the Board of Directors thereon;

To deliver opinions on any matters submitted to it by the Board of Directors or that it wishes to address;
To meet at least once a month, or may be held at any time whenever necessary when convened by the
Board of Directors;

To summarizes and evaluate its annual performance; and

To exercise such other rights and performs duties as assigned by the Board of Directors and
Shareholders.

Meetings & Minutes

a) The quorum of the meetings shall be at least two (2) members or 50% of the total members, whichever
is higher;

b) Resolutions, proposals and matters tabled for approvals at any meeting of the Committee shall be decided
by majority of the members present; and

c) The Secretary shall be from the Group Company Secretary or an official from Group Secretariat Division.
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(3) Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee
As of 31 December 2018, the Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee

of RHB Bank Lao Limited consisted of three members as follows:

No. | Member Position
1 Mr. Ong Seng Pheow Chairman
2 Mr. Chulapong Yukate Member
3 Ms. Gan Pai Li Member
The Company Secretary is Encik Azman Shah Md Yaman

Key Responsibilities
The terms of reference of the RHBBL’s BNRC with regard to its nomination roles are as follows:-

1. To establish a documented procedure for the appointment of directors, board committee members
and key senior management officers.

2. To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, minimum requirements for directors and key
senior management officers.

3. To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, the optimal size and mix of skills to ensure

efficient operation of the Committee.

To review on a periodic basis, the policy on boardroom and gender diversity.

To assess and recommend for Board’s approval, new and reappointed nominees for directorship,

board committee members and key senior management officers.

6. To establish and recommend for Board approval, the expectations on time commitment for the
board members and protocols for accepting new directorships.

7. To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, a mechanism for the formal assessment of the
Board’s performance as a whole, each Director and key senior management officers.

8. Toreview performance assessment results and recommend to the Board, the removal of any director
or key senior management officer found to be ineffective, errant and negligent in the discharge or
responsibilities.

9. To ensure directors and board committee members receive appropriate induction and continuous
training programs for closure of skills gaps and keeping abreast with latest developments.

10. To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, the criteria assess independence of independent
directors.

11. To assess annually the independence of independent directors and that the directors and officers of
RHBBL meet the identified independence criteria and are not disqualified under relevant
regulations.

12. To review and recommend for Board’s approval, any significant change in the organization
structure of the RHBBL.

13. Whenever key expatriates are employed, to ensure there is in place a process for the transfer of
expertise and skills from the expatriates to the staff of RHBBL.

14. To recommend to the Board, a policy regarding the period of service for the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors.

15. To perform any other functions as defined by the Board.

oa s

Reporting Structure

The Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee (‘the Committee™) is directly
accountable to Board and the Board will continue to be accountable for all matters relating to RHBBL.
Whilst the committee reports to the Board, all minutes are to be tabled to RHB Bank Berhad’s Board
Nominating & Remuneration Committee as part of group oversight requirements.
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The terms of reference of the BNRC with regard to its remuneration roles are as follows: -

1.

To ensure the establishment of formal and transparent procedures for developing Remuneration and
HR policies, strategies and frameworks for directors, key senior management officers (which entails
MD/Country Head and persons as may be determined by the Committee) and staff.
To recommend remuneration strategies, policies & framework and specific remuneration packages
for directors, board committee members and key senior management officers, which would be
(where relevant):
a. Market competitive and in support of the Group’s culture, vision, objectives and strategy;
b. Reflective of the responsibilities and commitment required,;
c. Sufficient to attract and retain quality people but yet not excessive;
d. Performance driven with sufficient emphasis on long term development of RHBBL to
avoid excessive short-term risk taking

The framework should cover all aspects of remuneration including directors’ fees, salaries, allowances,
bonuses, option and benefit —in-kind.

3.

4.
5.

6.

To ensure HR strategies, policies and frameworks are in place for all the building blocks of a quality
HR management system (e.g succession planning, talent and leadership development training, etc)
to support the RHBBL in achieving its objectives.

To review and assess the effectiveness of the GHR and/or HR Division in supporting the RHBBL.
To review and recommend for Board approval, any significant change in the organization structure
of RHBBL.

To perform any other functions as defined by the Board.

Regulatory Requirements: Law on Commercial Banks

The Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee shall, at the minimum, have the
following rights and duties:

1.

2.

o

To select individuals qualified to become directors in accordance with established criteria; and to
recommend (them) to the shareholders’ meeting for consideration;

To select individuals qualified to become the Country Head, Deputy Country Head(s) and Chief
Financial Officer/Head, Finance Division in accordance with established criteria; and to
recommend (them) to the Board of Directors for appointment;

To study the annual action plan of the Board of Directors;

To define requirements and plans for the evaluation of the activities of the Board of Directors and
administrators;

To meet at least once every six months, or may be held at any time whenever necessary
(extraordinary meeting); when convened by the Board of Directors;

To summarize and evaluate its annual performance; and

To exercise such other rights and performs duties as assigned by the Board of Directors and
Shareholders’ Meeting.

Meetings & Minutes

a) The Committee shall preferably meet twice a year or whenever deemed necessary at the discretion of
the Chairman

b) The quorum of the meetings shall be at least two (2) members or 50% of the total members, whichever
is higher;

c) Resolutions, proposals and matters tabled for approvals at any meeting of the Committee shall be
decided by majority of the members present; and the secretary shall be the Group Company Secretary
or an official from Group Secretariat Division.

d) Minutes of each meeting shall be kept and distributed to all members. The minutes meeting shall be
presented at the Board meeting by the Chairman.
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Management Team
As of 31 December 2018, the Management team of RHB Bank Limited consisted of the following:

No. [ Name Position
1 | Danny Ling Chii Hian Chief Executive Officer
2 | Chanpheng Chandavong Senior Manager, Credit Evaluation
3 | Somphavanh Bounyasith Senior Manager, Operations and Support
4 | Outtama Phompida Senior Manager, Finance and Administration
5 | Souphaphone Souannavong Senior Manager, Business Development and Marketing
6 | Phonepasong Mixab Senior Manager, Loans and Credit Administration
7 | Bounyared Luangraj Manager, Compliance and Risk Management
8 | Anouphong Southivong Manager, Human Resource and Training
9 | Vilaphonh Manivanh Manager, Information Technology
10 | Phannavy Anoulack Manager, Frontline Operations
11 | Kaysone Malaythong Acting Assistant Manager, Frontline Operations
12 | Tanvinay Nguansavanh Manager, Sithan Neua Branch
13 | Sonethanouxay Sysanhouth Assistant Manager, Sithan Neua Branch
14 | Thonglay Phonvilaisouk Manager, Dongdok Branch
15 | Mayulin Sithongkham Assistant Manager, Dongdok Branch
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(2) Organization Structure.

tructure was as follows

1zation s
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Rights and Duties of Chief Executive Officer

The Country Head is responsible for day-to-day operations of the Bank in accordance with the rights
and duties defined in the internal regulations of the Bank.

The Country Head is appointed and may be removed by the Board of Directors, has a term of office of
two years, and may be re-appointed.

The Country Head can be a member of the Board of Directors, but shall not be the Chairperson or a
Deputy Chairperson of the Board of Directors.

The Country Head shall have the following rights and duties:

1. To act as the representative of, and to sign contracts and other official documents on behalf of the
Bank;

2. To manage day-to-day operations of the Bank in accordance with the scope of his rights and duties
defined in the internal regulations or as assigned by the Board of Directors;

3. Todevelop and propose, or to propose adjustment to, the annual business plan to the Board of Directors
for consideration and approval, and then to implement such plan;

4. To recommend for appointment, transfer or removal of the Deputy Country Head (s) to the Board of
Directors for approval;

5. To appoint, remove, recruit and deploy the employees of the Bank;

6. To provide data and information and to give explanation on particular issues of interests to the Board
of Directors;

7. To develop and improve governance regulations and to propose [them] to the Board of Directors for

consideration and approval;

To be responsible to the Board of Directors for all operations of the Bank;

9. Torecommend to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval, the establishment of branches
and affiliates or investments in other businesses;

10. To determine the salary structure for, and to implement reward policies and sanctions towards the
employees of the Bank, in accordance with regulations of the Bank;

11. To cooperate with, and to provide data, information and explanations, to the internal audit committee
and external auditors;

12. To report on the operations of the Bank to the Board of Directors and its committees, and to
provide explanation and necessary documents as required by concerned parties; and

13. To exercise other rights, and perform other duties as provided under the regulations.

©

Company Secretary

The Board acknowledges and is satisfied with the performance and support rendered by the Company
Secretary. In addition to acting as the custodian of the Company’s statutory records, the Company Secretary
serves and advises the Board on matters relating to the affairs of the Board and good corporate governance
practices, ensure that Board meetings are appropriately convened and maintains an accurate and proper
record of the proceedings and minutes of the meetings.

In promoting good corporate governance practices, the Company Secretary assists the Board and Senior
Management in meeting regulatory requirements and best practices specifically pertaining to Board
governance. This includes making proposals on transparency and mandatory/voluntary disclosure on
governance issues which are relevant and materially important to the stakeholders.

The role of the Company Secretary also includes assisting the Chairman and Directors in conducting
meetings and discharging their governance obligations and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.
Additionally, the Company Secretary facilitates the communication of key decisions and policies between
the Board, Board Committees and the Senior Management, updating the Board on the follow-up or
implementation of decisions/recommendations.
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In order to play an effective advisory role to the Board, the Company Secretary is kept abreast with the
latest, industry developments and best practices in corporate governance

MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

RHB Bank Lao Limited (the Bank) is a commercial bank incorporated and registered in Lao People’s
Democratic Republic (Lao P.D.R.).

The Bank is a limited company by 100% foreign investment under the laws of Lao P.D.R. The Bank operate
its banking business under the Law on Commercial Bank, No. 03/NA, dated 26 December 2006 and under
the regulations of Bank of Lao P.D.R (BOL). The Bank had received its Banking License No.10/BOL and
Enterprise Registration Certificate No.0069/ERA dated 23 January 2018.

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the BOD) of RHB Bank Lao Limited (the Bank) are responsible for
ensuring that the financial statements are required to:

e adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates and then apply them consistently;

e comply in accordance with accounting policies of the Bank and the relevant accounting regulations
and notifications of BOL described in Note 2 to the financial statements and ensure that these have
been, appropriately disclosed explained and quantified in the financial statements;

e maintain adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal controls;

e prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to assume that
the Bank will continue operations for the foreseeable future; and

o effectively control and direct the Bank and be involved in all material decisions affecting the

operations and performance of the Bank, and ascertain that such decisions have been properly
reflected in the financial statements.

We confirm that the Bank has complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

..”’U'Hx Y,\

tL a1 }17'7;)
\l (‘l I?I

Danny Ling Chii Hian
Chief Executive Officer
25 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Share holders and Board of Directors of RHB Bank
Lao Limited

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of RHB Bank Lao Limited (the Bank) are prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the accounting policies of the Bank and the relevant accounting regulations
and notifications of Bank of the Lao People’s Democratic Republic as described in Note 2 to the financial
statements.

What we have audited
The Bank’s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

the statement of income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report.

We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accounts’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes
the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the accounting policies of
the Bank and the relevant accounting regulations and notifications of Bank of the Lao People’s Democratic
Republic as described in Note 2 to the financial statements to assist the Bank to meet the requirements of
the Bank of Lao People’s Democratic Republic. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for
another purpose.

Our report is intended solely for the Bank and should not be distributed to or used by parties other than the
Bank and the aforementioned parties. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
policies of the Bank and the relevant accounting regulations and notifications of Bank of Lao People’s
Democratic Republic as described in Note 2 to the financial statements, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank’s to cease to continue
as a going concern.

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

N\,

Y%

o,

By Apisit Thiéhgtr‘o'hgbi'nyo

(%

Partner
Vientiane, Lao P.D.R.
25 March 2019
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